
Please note: Certain or all items on this agenda may be recorded on tape 

Agenda compiled by: 
Guy Close 
Governance Services 
Civic Hall 
LEEDS, LS1 1UR 
Telephone: 24 74356 
 

 
 
 

Principal Scrutiny Advisor: 
Richard Mills 
Tel: 24 74557 

  Produced on Recycled Paper 

 
A 

 

 

 

SCRUTINY BOARD (CITY AND REGIONAL PARTNERSHIPS) 
 

 
Meeting to be held in Civic Hall, Leeds on 
Thursday, 4th March, 2010 at 10.00 am 

 
(A pre-meeting will take place for ALL Members of the Board at 9.30 a.m.) 

 
MEMBERSHIP 

 
Councillors 

 
B Atha - Kirkstall; 

P Davey - City and Hunslet; 

G Driver - Middleton Park; 

J Dunn - Ardsley and Robin Hood; 

C Fox - Adel and Wharfedale; 

A Hussain - Gipton and Harehills; 

M Lyons - Temple Newsam; 

J Matthews - Headingley; 

R Pryke - Burmantofts and Richmond 
Hill; 

F Robinson - Calverley and Farsley; 

A Shelbrooke - Harewood; 

S Smith (Chair) - Rothwell; 

 
 

Public Document Pack



 

B 

A G E N D A 
 
 

Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

1   
 

  APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION 
OF DOCUMENTS 
 
To consider any appeals in accordance with 
Procedure Rule 25* of the Access to Information 
Procedure Rules (in the event of an Appeal the 
press and public will be excluded). 
 
(* In accordance with Procedure Rule 25, notice of 
an appeal must be received in writing by the Chief 
Democratic Services Officer at least 24 hours 
before the meeting.) 
 

 

2   
 

  EXEMPT INFORMATION - POSSIBLE 
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 
1 To highlight reports or appendices which 

officers have identified as containing exempt 
information, and where officers consider that 
the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information, for the reasons 
outlined in the report. 

 
2 To consider whether or not to accept the 

officers recommendation in respect of the 
above information. 

 
3 If so, to formally pass the following 

resolution:- 
 
 RESOLVED – That the press and public be 

excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following parts of the 
agenda designated as containing exempt 
information on the grounds that it is likely, in 
view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or the nature of the proceedings, 
that if members of the press and public were 
present there would be disclosure to them of 
exempt information, as follows:- 

 
 No exempt items or information have 

been identified on this agenda. 
 

 



 

 
C 

Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

3   
 

  LATE ITEMS 
 
To identify items which have been admitted to the 
agenda by the Chair for consideration. 
 
(The special circumstances shall be specified in 
the minutes.) 
 

 

4   
 

  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
To declare any personal / prejudicial interests for 
the purpose of Section 81 (3) of the Local 
Government Act 2000 and paragraphs 8 to 12 of 
the Members Code of Conduct. 
 

 

5   
 

  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
To receive any apologies for absence. 
 

 

6   
 

  MINUTES - 4TH FEBRUARY 2010 
 
To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the 
meeting held on 4th February 2010. 
 

1 - 4 

7   
 

  COMPREHENSIVE AREA ASSESSMENT 2009 - 
AREA ASSESSMENT REPORT 
 
To receive and consider a report from the Assistant 
Chief Executive (Planning, Policy and 
Improvement) presenting the 2009 Area 
Assessment report for Leeds. 
 

5 - 32 

8   
 

  JOINT SERVICE CENTRE KIRKSTALL 
 
To receive and consider a report from the Joint 
Service Centres Programme on the outcome of the 
“lessons learned” workshop following the decision 
of NHS Leeds not to proceed with the Joint Service 
Centre in Kirkstall.  
 

33 - 
48 

9   
 

  CURRENT WORK PROGRAMME 
 
To receive and consider a report from the Head of 
Scrutiny and Member Development outlining the 
Scrutiny Board’s work programme for the 
remainder of the current municipal year. 
 

49 - 
94 



 

 
D 

Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

10   
 

  DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING 
 
To note that the next meeting of the Board will be 
held on Friday, 16th April 2010 at 10.00 am with a 
pre meeting for Board Members at 9.30 am. 
 

 

 



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Thursday, 4th March, 2010 

 

SCRUTINY BOARD (CITY AND REGIONAL PARTNERSHIPS) 
 

THURSDAY, 4TH FEBRUARY, 2010 
 

PRESENT: 
 

Councillor S Smith in the Chair 

 Councillors B Atha, G Driver, C Fox, 
A Hussain, J Matthews, R Pryke, 
F Robinson and A Shelbrooke 

 
Apologies Councillor  P Davey, J Dunn and 

M Lyons 
 
 

55 Apologies for Absence  
 

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors Davey, Dunn 
and Lyons. 
 

56 Minutes of the Previous Meeting  
 

RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 7 January 2010 be 
confirmed as a correct record. 
 

57 Matters Arising from the Minutes  
 

Minute No. 49 – Session 2 Inquiry on the Integrated Transport Strategy 
Transport Governance: Leeds City Region and West Yorkshire 
 
It was reported that draft final report for the Transport Inquiry would be 
prepared for the Board’s next meeting. 
 

58 Vision for Leeds 2011 to 2030  
 

The report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development asked the 
Board to consider the work that the Leeds Initiative and Partnerships had 
completed so far on developing a new Vision for Leeds 2011 to 2030 and the 
work programmed for subsequent phases. 
 
A report of the Chief Officer, Leeds Initiative and Partnerships was also 
attached for the Board’s consideration.  This outlined  the work completed so 
far on the Vision for Leeds 2011 to 2030 and the work programmed for 
subsequent phases. 
 
The Chair welcomed Martin Dean and Sally Corcoran of the Leeds Initiative to 
the meeting. 
 
It was reported that consultation had started with stakeholders at a range of 
meetings and events and observations had been detailed in the report.  
Housing, Digital Technology and issues regarding The Children’s Services 

Agenda Item 6

Page 1



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Thursday, 4th March, 2010 

 

inspection had been flagged up as issues to be included in the Vision.  A draft 
public version of the vision would be available in June 2010. 
 
There were 4 areas for potential aims to shape the vision: 
 

• To be a sustainable City by 2030 – to have a low carbon economy, 
local produce 

• To be a city of Wellbeing – tackle poverty, economic and employment 
issues 

• To be an area of ambition – the Going Up a League initiative 

• Equality – whether this should be a top level aim? 
 
The Board was informed of the timetable for the Vision: 
 

• May/June 2010 – Draft Vision is prepared 

• Main consultation to be finished by the end of 2010  

• Approval by Full Council in April 2011 – needs to be approved by 
Council and partners. 

 
In response to Members comments and questions, the following issues were 
discussed: 
 

• How to ensure the Vision reflected the concerns of those involved – 
there would always be areas of contention.  There was a track record 
of delivering visions in Leeds and this would be a challenging role for 
officers.   

• Consultants were not being used for producing the Vision. 

• With reference to more localised visions, it was reported that these 
were still needed to plan on a different scale. 

• Housing for local people to prevent further dissipation of communities. 

• Providing affordable housing for people to remain in their own 
communities. 

• Working with partners and organisations who allocate the resources 
and how to inform them. 

• How to make people feel that they’re part of a vibrant city – particularly 
those affected by worklessnes, poor social housing and those in the 
inner city areas. 

• Reference to initiatives in other areas such as the provision of free Wi-
Fi and the Kirklees ‘Warm Zone’. 

• Solar Panels – see Local Access Forum agenda. 

• Engaging the public in their communities. 

• Legislation relating to community strategies and the effect on Executive 
Board and Coucnil activity. 

• The next Leeds Strategic Plan and how it will fit in with the Vision for 
Leeds. 

• How the vision makes a case to Government, Yorkshire Forward and 
European Union funding streams for resources.  An example from the 
last Vision was the Local Enterprise Growth Initiative. 

Page 2



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Thursday, 4th March, 2010 

 

• A financial statement detailing the cost of producing the Vision for 
Leeds would be prepared. 

• Comparisons with Visions in othe similar cities.  This information would 
be provided to Members. 

 
The Chair thanked Martin Dean and Sarah Corcoran for their attendance. 
 
RESOLVED –  
 

(a) That the report and discussion be noted. 
(b) That a further report be brougfh back to the Board in June 2010. 

 
59 Work Programme  
 

The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a report that 
outlined the Board’s Work Programme.  Also attached was a copy of the 
Executive Board Minutes of 6 January 2010 and Members were also issued 
with a copy of the Forward Plan of Key Decisions. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted and the Work Programme be 
amended as necessary. 
 

60 Date and Time of Next Meeting  
 

Thursday, 4 March 2010 at 10.00 a.m. (Pre-meeting at 9.30 a.m. for all 
Members. 
 
 

Page 3



Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



 
Report of the Assistant Chief Executive (Planning, Policy and Improvement) 
 
Meeting: City and Regional Partnerships Scrutiny Board 
 
Date: 4th March 2010 
 
Subject: Comprehensive Area Assessment 2009 – Area Assessment Report 
 

        
 
 
Executive Summary 

1. This report brings to the Board the first Area Assessment report produced under the new 
Comprehensive Area Assessment – this is the first round of reporting under this new framework 
which has completely replaced the annual star rating of the Comprehensive Performance 
Assessment (CPA).  The Area Assessment report tabled looks across all the public services in 
the city and provides a judgement on the city’s performance against the strategic priorities within 
the Leeds Strategic Plan.  This brings together a range of assessment and inspection activity 
from across a variety of external inspectorates.  The Board should note that their role in reviewing 
this report is to look at the effectiveness of partnership working rather than at the specific 
performance issues highlighted which fall within the remit of the other Scrutiny Boards. 

 
 

Specific Implications For:  

 
Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 
 

 

 

Originator: H Pinches 
 

Tel: 43347 

 Ward Members consulted 
 (referred to in report)  
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 5



1.0 Purpose Of This Report 

1.1 This report bring to Board the 2009 Area Assessment report for Leeds. 

2.0   Background Information 
 

2.1 The Comprehensive Area Assessment (CAA) is the new framework for the independent 
assessment of local public services in England.  CAA has two main elements, which are 
linked and inform each other, these are:  

Ø Area Assessment that looks at how well local public services are delivering better 
results for local people across the whole city, focusing on agreed priorities such as 
health, economic prospects and community safety, and how they are likely to 
improve in the future; and 

 
Ø Organisational Assessment of individual public bodies which for the council 

comprises two scored assessments – Use of Resources and Managing Performance.  
These scores are aggregated to produce a single score for the organisation.   

 

2.2 In addition, the National Indicator Set (NIS) introduced from April 2008, is also used as a 
key evidence source for both the area and organisational assessments. 

 

3.0 Main Issues 

3.1 The CAA is an annual assessment co-ordinated by the Audit Commission through the CAA 
Lead (CAAL) but incorporates the views of all relevant inspectorates (eg Ofsted, Care 
Quality Commission, Her Majesties Inspectorate of Constabulary etc).  The Area 
Assessment examines how well local services are delivering improvements and progressing 
towards long term goals.  The Area Assessment seeks to assess the effectiveness of 
partnership working, and the implementation of the sustainable community strategy and 
local area agreement.  The CAA provides the public with direct access to information on 
performance and an independent assessment of the prospects for the local area. 

 

3.2 In carrying out the Area Assessment consideration has been given to three key questions: 
 

•••• How well do local priorities express community needs and aspirations? 

•••• How well are outcomes and improvements needed being delivered? 

•••• What are the prospects for future improvement? 
 

3.3 The Area Assessment is reported as a narrative and does not receive a numerical score or 
other rating; instead ‘red’ and ‘green’ flags are issued in relation to the progress being made 
in an area.  It is important to note that ‘red’ and ‘green’ flags are not the opposite of each 
other; they each have their own distinct purpose and criteria ie: 

 

•••• Where the action being taken in an area to improve an important outcome is assessed 
by the inspectorates as unlikely to deliver the improvement sought, this may be 
highlighted as a significant concern using a red flag.  It is important to note that a 
deteriorating outcome will not necessarily result in a red flag. 

•••• Where exceptional performance or improvement is identified, or there are promising 
prospects for improvement through innovation, this may be highlighted as a source of 
learning for others using a green flag.   

 

3.4 The Organisational Assessment is largely outside the remit of the Board as it covers the 
following key questions: 

 
 
 

Page 6



•••• Managing Finances – how effectively does the organisation manage its finances to 
deliver value for money? 

•••• Governing the Business – how well does the organisation govern itself and 
commission services that provide value for money and deliver better outcomes for 
local people? 

•••• Managing Resources – how well does the organisation manage its natural resources, 
physical assets and people to meet current and future needs and deliver value for 
money? 

•••• Managing Performance – how well does the organisation manage and improve its 
services and contribute to wider community outcomes? 

 

3.5 The Area Assessment report is provided at appendix 1 and is tabled for discussion at the 
Board.  However, members should note that many of the issues in the report relate to 
specific performance areas which fall within the remit of other Scrutiny Boards.  It is 
suggested that the City and Regional Partnerships Board should focus their discussions on 
the information provided in the report relating to the effectiveness of partnership work 
across the city in order to avoid duplicating the work of other Scrutiny Boards. 

 

4.0 Implications For Council Policy And Governance 

4.1 The CAA framework has important implications; in particular, as government sees it as a 
catalyst for driving improvement and better value for money from local services.  The CAA 
provides Members and the public with direct access to information on performance and an 
independent assessment of the future prospects for the local area.  The CAA findings 
should be used to inform the setting of future priorities and policy for the city, directing 
resources and ensuring that our most vulnerable people and communities receive services 
which meet their needs.   

5.0 Legal And Resource Implications 

5.1 One of the clearly stated intentions of the new CAA framework is to reduce the burden of 
inspection; however, the experience of the first year of assessment does raise a number of 
questions about how effectively this has been achieved.  Furthermore, in its place-shaping 
role the burden to co-ordinate any improvement activity arising from the Area Assessment is 
likely to fall to the council.  The CAA is used to inform the rolling programme of inspections 
within specific service areas and high performing areas are likely to be subject to less 
frequent inspections. 

 

6.0  Conclusions 

6.1 The first round of the Comprehensive Area Assessment has been completed and the Area 
Assessment report for 2009 are brought to the Board for discussion.   

7.0 Recommendations 

7.1 The Board is asked to consider the relevant parts of the Area Assessment report which are 
within the remit of the Board.  

 

Background papers 

• Sustainable Community Strategy – Vision for Leeds 2004-20 

• Leeds Strategic Plan 2008-11 

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 9



     Area Assessment                                                                                Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

     2     Leeds

Page 10



     Area Assessment                                                                                Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

     3     Leeds

Page 11



     Area Assessment                                                                                Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

     4     Leeds

Page 12



     Area Assessment                                                                                Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

     5     Leeds

Page 13



     Area Assessment                                                                                Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

     6     Leeds

Page 14



     Area Assessment                                                                                Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

     7     Leeds

Page 15



     Area Assessment                                                                                Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

     8     Leeds

Page 16



     Area Assessment                                                                                Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

     9     Leeds

Page 17



     Area Assessment                                                                                Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

     10     Leeds

Page 18



     Area Assessment                                                                                Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

     11     Leeds

Page 19



     Area Assessment                                                                                Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

     12     Leeds

Page 20



     Area Assessment                                                                                Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

     13     Leeds

Page 21



     Area Assessment                                                                                Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

     14     Leeds

Page 22



     Area Assessment                                                                                Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

     15     Leeds

Page 23



     Area Assessment                                                                                Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

     16     Leeds

Page 24



     Area Assessment                                                                                Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

     17     Leeds

Page 25



     Area Assessment                                                                                Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

     18     Leeds

Page 26



     Area Assessment                                                                                Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

     19     Leeds

Page 27



     Area Assessment                                                                                Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

     20     Leeds

Page 28



     Area Assessment                                                                                Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

     21     Leeds

Page 29



     Area Assessment                                                                                Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

     22     Leeds

Page 30



     Area Assessment                                                                                Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

     23     Leeds

Page 31



Page 32

This page is intentionally left blank



 
Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 
 
Scrutiny Board (City and Regional Partnerships) 
 
Date: 4th March 2010 
 
Subject: Joint Service Centre Kirkstall 
 

        
 
 
1.0 Introduction 
 

1.1 At  the Board meeting on 9th December 2009 Members were advised that NHS 
 Leeds Board on 19th November 2009 had decided not to progress with the Joint 
 Service Centre at Kirkstall and that further options for provision in Kirkstall would be 
 considered. These included making use of the current Kirkstall Health Centre. 
 

1.2 Members requested that the Public Private Partnership Unit (PPPU) with NHS  
              Leeds prepare a "lessons learned" report for consideration at today's meeting.  
 

1.3 The Board on 9th December also agreed that following submission of this " lessons 
 learned" report a draft Statement and recommendations be prepared for 
 consideration by the Board in the current municipal year. 
 

2.0 Lessons Learned Report 
 

2.1 A "lessons learned" report on the Joint Service Centre Project is attached. 
 

2.2  The Executive Project Manager, Mr David Grooby and or the Chief Officer PPPU  
              Mr David Outram will attend the meeting today for this item.  
 

3.0 Recommendations 
 

3.1 The Board is asked to: 
 

(i) Consider and comment on  the "lessons learned" report.  
(ii) Note that a draft Statement and recommendations is being prepared for 

consideration by the Board at its meeting on 16th April 2010. 
 

Background Papers 

None 

Specific Implications For:  

 
Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected: All 

 
 

 

 

Originator: Richard Mills 
 

Tel: 247 4557  

 Ward Members consulted 
 (referred to in report)  
 

Agenda Item 8

Page 33



Page 34

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

Lessons Learned Report 
Project Title: Joint Service Centre Project 

Project Stage: Construction 

Directorate / Service:  City Services 
 

Date: 23 February 2010 

Author / Project 

Manager: 
David Grooby – Executive Project Manager 

Document File Path: 

l:\proj-workings\cp01-jsc-t3 & t4\04-jsc 3\07-
projclose\05 ll\lessons learned workshop 

20100204\report\jsc lessons learned report 
(programme) v.1.00 FINAL (for SB).doc 

Page 35



 

1.0 DOCUMENT CONTROL 

Revision History 

Version Status 
Revision 

Date 
Summary of Changes Author 

0.01 DRAFT 12/02/10 Document drafted following 
Lessons Learned Workshop 

Craig 
Taylor 

0.02 DRAFT 15/02/10 Detail added Rob Porter 

0.03 DRAFT 15/02/10 
Revisions to reflect project 
detail 

David 
Grooby 

0.04 DRAFT 16/02/10 Final review 
Craig 
Taylor 

1.00 FINAL 23/02/10 
Approved and Background 

Information added 

C Taylor / 

D Grooby 

     

Review and Approvals 

Name Approval/ Review Details 
Date of 
Review 

Workshop attendees Review 22/02/10 

   

Distribution 

Name 
Date of 

Issue 
Version 

JSC / LIFT Project Board  1.00 

Scrutiny Board 23/02/10 1.00 

Public Private Partnerships Unit management 
team 

 1.00 

PPPU Governance  1.00 

Workshop Invitees 23/02/10 1.00 

Page 36



 

2.0 PURPOSE 
 

The purpose of a Lessons Learned Report is to bring together the lessons 
learned during a project that can be usefully shared with and applied to 

subsequent stages of the project or to other Public Private Partnerships 

Unit, Leeds City Council or PCT projects. 
 

The Lessons Learned Report forms part of the Project Appraisal undertaken 
on projects. 

 
 

3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 

3.1 Joint Service Centres 
 

In August 2004 the City Council submitted an Outline Business Case to the 
former ODPM for PFI credits to deliver three new Joint Service Centres in 

conjunction with the Leeds PCT, procured through the NHS Local 
Improvement Finance Trust (LIFT) initiative.  

 
PFI Credit Allocation of £15.7m was received and the Executive Board 

approved scope of the project in September 2004 to deliver 3 Joint Service 

Centres in: 
 

– Chapeltown; 
– Harehills; and 

– Kirkstall 
–  

The Joint Service Centre Programme looks to make a significant 
contribution to the work undertaken by the City Council to tackle the health 

and social inequalities prevalent in the city through ‘narrowing the gap’ 
between the most disadvantaged neighbourhoods and the city as a whole. 

 
At the outset of the Project, the City Council undertook an extensive 

analysis of customer service provision within Leeds, and identified priority 
areas within the most deprived community areas.  The Project looked to 

address the outcomes of this analysis as follows: 

 
– Improve our understanding of customers 

– Increase customer choice and convenience 
– Develop joined up and person centre services based on need 

– Improve access for everyone 
– Design services around need 

– Increase efficiency 
– Deliver continuous improvement 

 
The services to be provided to address the outcomes above were outlined 

in the OBC (see table overleaf). 

Page 37



 

The scope of the Project was also refined since the submission of the OBC 
to include: 

 
• Customer services, including housing, social services, benefits, 

Council tax  and a hate incident reporting centre (Chapeltown and 

Harehills); 
• Health and environmental action services (Chapeltown and 

Harehills); 
• Community library (Chapeltown and Harehills); 

• Leeds City Credit Union (Chapeltown and Harehills); 
• North East Area Management Team office (Chapeltown); 

• Hot desk provision for social services (Chapeltown); 
• Job shops (Chapeltown and Harehills); 

• ‘HUB’ service provided jointly with the PCT (Chapeltown); and 
• Chinese Advisory Service (Harehills).  

 

Outline Business Case – Services 

 

 

The key tasks and timescales associated with the project as originally set 

out in the OBC were significantly different to those timescales documented 
in the FBC. 

Page 38



 

In December 2006 due to ongoing difficulties with the acquisition of the 
site and scale of development, Kirkstall was uncoupled from the other two 

joint service centres and progressed to a separate timescale. Agreement 
was reached that Kirkstall should become a Tranche 4 scheme with 

Chapeltown and Harehills forming Tranche 3. 

 
In correspondence with CLG in February 2008, the City Council confirmed a 

total PFI Credit requirement required for Chapeltown JSC and Harehills JSC 
of £11.7m, with the remaining £4m PFI Credits to be used for the Kirkstall 

JSC. 
 

The Final Business Case was submitted to the Department of Communities 
and Local Government in May 2009 which sought approval for the 

Chapeltown and Harehills Joint Service Centres.  Tranche 3 of the JSC PFI 
project reached financial close in June 2009 and is currently under 

construction.  Service commencement is scheduled for July 2010 (Harehills 
JSC) and November 2010 (Chapeltown JSC). 

 
The ongoing work to develop the third JSC in Kirkstall has recently been 

halted and the PCT have now withdrawn from the scheme.  
 

4.0 HOW LESSONS LEARNED HAVE BEEN CAPTURED 

4.1 Lessons Learned Workshop 

A lessons learned workshop was held during the Construction stage of the 

Chapeltown and Harehills projects on 04 February 2010. 

The workshop was facilitated by Craig Taylor and conducted with the 

following participants: 

 

Name Role 

Trish Hewitt Head of Capital Procurement, NHS Leeds 

Visseh Pejhan-Sykes Assistant Director of Finance, NHS Leeds 

Franklin Riley Senior Project Manager, Leeds City Council 

David Outram Chief Officer, PPPU, Leeds City Council 

David Grooby Executive Project Manager, PPPU, Leeds City 

Council 

Stewart Irvine Community Ventures Ltd 

Maureen Taylor Chief Officer, Financial Development, Leeds City 

Council 

 

Page 39



 

5.0 LESSONS LEARNED CATEGORIES 

5.1 Pre Procurement and Procurement 

Lessons learned have been categorised using the 4Ps vital factors for 
procurement success. These are detailed below: 

 

Area Definition 

Affordability 

and Best Value 

The Reference Project was accurately costed as part of 

the Business Case development process including a 
realistic assessment of affordability to help contribute to a 

smooth procurement.  The chosen project and 
procurement option represented Best Value. 

 

Guidance and 
Documentation 

Appropriate 4Ps procurement packs and HM Treasury 
guidance on standardisation of PFI contracts were utilised.  

Project documentation was effectively controlled and 
managed and issued to the required quality in a timely 

manner enabling effective consideration prior to any 
significant project decisions being made. 

 

Leadership and 

Managing the 

Process 

The project was effectively led and managed with 

appropriate senior management and buy-in.  Appropriate 

project planning and robust project management 
processes were evident to facilitate successful delivery.  

The project was allocated the dedicated and adequate 
resources to facilitate successful project delivery.   

 

Project 

principles 

The project had a clear vision and objectives set which 

aligned with LCC’s corporate and service strategies.  
Evidence of project options, evaluation of solution, 

contract management and all relevant project 
documentation. 

 

Risk 
Management 

A project risk register was in place and maintained 
throughout the project in accordance with agreed LCC/NIT 

standards.  Evidence that risks were being effectively 
quantified, mitigated and managed including appropriate 

escalation as required. 

 

Stakeholder 

Management 
and 

Communication 

Stakeholder objectives and contributions were aligned 

with those of the project.  A communication strategy and 
plan was in place and maintained throughout the project 

to ensure that stakeholders continued to be engaged with 

Page 40



 

the project. 

 

Technical and 

Statutory 
Issues 

Appropriate technical and statutory / legal issues were 

addressed as early as possible in the project to avoid 
delays and additional costs arising from, for example, 

planning site acquisitions, ground conditions, surveys and 
environmental issues.  Evidence that any issues to 

emerge during the project were dealt with effectively and 
efficient in a timely manner. 

 

Understanding 

the Market 

There was an appropriate awareness and understanding 

of the aspirations and concerns of potential service 

providers in the relevant market.  The aim was not only to 
secure an affordable and well managed project but also to 

manage and mitigate any uncertainty so that potential 
bidders were reassured about issues associated with the 

project. 

 

Page 41



 

6.0 KEY LESSONS LEARNT SUMMARY 

6.1 What Could Have Been Improved and How? 

Outlined below is a summary of the key lessons learnt. 

Category What Could Have Been Improved Recommendation for Improvement 

Affordability 

and Best Value 

It was noted that often projects have funding 

streams attached which changes the focus from 
options appraisal and value for money to 

securing funding for projects. E.g. the incentives 
to retain PFI credits. 

 

Options appraisals should clearly evaluate all 

procurement options available, including a do 
nothing option. As the PCT did not have PFI 

available to them for JSC, partners funding of 
revenue needs to be properly considered. 

Affordability 
and Best Value 

The PCT did not have a suitable tool for 
appraising service and funding priorities. 

Consequently they had difficulty assessing the 
value for money of the programme. Affordability 

should not be confused with Value for Money. 

Consequently when the Kirkstall scheme was 

reviewed in 2009 the previous justification for 
the PCT element of the project did not stand up 

to scrutiny. 

Differences in sources of funding (the Council 

were granted PFI credits) may have led to a 

divergence in prioritisation of the programme 
between the Council and PCT. 

That a cost benefit analysis / options appraisal 
tool is developed jointly by the Council and PCT. 

Leeds City Council has an existing options 
appraisal methodology and the corporate project 

management methodology  “Delivering Successful 
Change” may also provide a basis for developing 

this. 

A shared methodology should ensure a shared 

and consistent understanding of service needs and 
project benefits is developed at the outset of any 

future project developed in partnership. 

Affordability should not be confused with Value for 
Money. 

P
a
g
e
 4

2



 

Category What Could Have Been Improved Recommendation for Improvement 

Guidance and 
Documentation 

The Department for Health business case 
guidance changed during the procurement. 

Guidance can be followed and changes can be 
taken account of relatively easily. However, it is 

not Government Guidance that is important; it is 
ensuring you have a business case that is robust 

and agreed within your service. 

 

Effective project governance was not established 

within the PCT. Consequently as corporate 
priorities changed and as major restructuring of 

the organisation was undertaken the links 
between the JSC programme and PCT strategy 

and management were not consistent or 
effective. 

It was therefore difficult to manage decision 
making and to ensure the project was progressed 

in line with PCT corporate priorities and 
managerial support. 

 

That work is undertaken with partner 

organisations to ensure that a formal governance 
structure with clear roles and responsibilities is set 

up at the very beginning of the project including 
communication strategy and reporting processes. 

 

Communication of formal decisions between the 
PCT and LCC could have been improved. 

 

As above. 

Leadership and 

Managing the 
Process 

Stage 1 of the procurement was fast tracked 

through the Strategic Health Authority approval 
process, which caused additional work at Stage 

2. 

 

Ensure that a realistic programme is agreed and 

planned in sufficient detail. 

P
a
g
e
 4

3



 

Category What Could Have Been Improved Recommendation for Improvement 

The PCT lacked sufficient estates experience to 
inform the JSC programme.  

That a shared review of available skills and 
experience is undertaken with partner 

organisations and experience is lacking in certain 
areas consideration is given  to sharing resources 

and / or accessing external advice. 

 

Project 

Principles 

The PCT did not have a sufficiently clear vision 

for the JSC programme with objectives set which 
aligned corporate and service strategies and that 

in the case of the Kirkstall centre they felt the 
emphasis for development was placed on the 

building rather than the services required. 

That work is undertaken with partner 

organisations to ensure that a cost benefit 
analysis is produced to inform the options 

appraisal and Outline Business Case. 

The reason to go ahead with the project needs to 

be addressed at the start of the project and the 
questions: “is it right?” and “is it viable?” need to 

be addressed at the start. Also, “what do you 
need?” not “what do you want?”. 

 

Risk 
Management 

None 

 

N/A 

 

Stakeholder 
Management 

and 
Communication 

The timing of PCT stakeholder consultation could 
have been improved. Buy in from stakeholders in 

decision making positions was lacking, leading to 
decisions not being made at the right times. 

 

Stakeholder management with regards the 

Kirkstall highways issues could have been 

improved, although development of the ultimate 

That work is undertaken with partner 
organisations to ensure that a communications 

strategy is clearly developed. 

P
a
g
e
 4

4



 

Category What Could Have Been Improved Recommendation for Improvement 

workable solution was felt to have been 
successful. 

 

Technical and 

Statutory 

Issues 

None 

 

N/A 

 

Understanding 

the Market 

 

None 

 

N/A 

 

P
a
g
e
 4

5



 

6.2 What Went Well and Why? 

Outlined below is a summary of the key lessons learnt. 

Category What Went Well Recommendation 

Affordability 
and Best Value 

 

Of the 3 centres planned the 2 that were 
delivered were within the budget set. The service 

mix, however, changed significantly as a result of 
the changing requirements of LCC and the PCT. 

 

Ensure that a cost benefit analysis is produced to 
inform the options appraisal and Outline Business 

Case. Affordability should not be confused with 
Value for Money. 

 

Guidance and 
Documentation 

None 

 

N/A 

 

Harehills and Chapeltown have been successfully 
delivered in the context of major organisational 

and service change. 

 

Consider the lessons learned from Chapeltown 
and Harehills (subject of a separate report) for 

other projects / programmes. 

 

The project team worked well together (including 

the SHA and advisors), which was illustrated by 
the fact that Commercial and Financial Close was 

achieved in relative short timescales bearing in 
mind the additional scrutiny required of the PCT 

and SHA. 

 

 

Spend time building the team. 

That work is undertaken with partner 
organisations to ensure that a formal governance 

structure with clear roles and responsibilities is 
set up at the very beginning of the project 

including communication strategy and reporting 
processes. 

 

Leadership and 
Managing the 

Process 

The design competition for Kirkstall worked very 
well and delivered a well developed, flexible 

reference scheme in a short time period. 

Consider different models to develop schemes on 
a project by project basis.  

P
a
g
e
 4

6



 

Category What Went Well Recommendation 

Project 
Principles 

None 

 

N/A 

 

Risk 
Management 

The City Council risk management process that 
was adopted later in the programme by the 

Council, PCT and Liftco worked well. 

Ensure that a robust risk management process is 
in place and followed. 

 

Stakeholder 
Management 

and 
Communication 

 

Stakeholder management was good with regards 
to who was consulted. 

That work is undertaken with partner 
organisations to ensure that a communications 

strategy is clearly developed. 

Technical and 
Statutory 

Issues 

None N/A 

The JSC programme would not have been 

delivered without the involvement of Liftco. In a 
competitive process it is likely that bidders would 

have walked away due to the delay and 
uncertainty. 

Tranche 3 (Chapeltown and Harehills) was 
sustained because tranches 1 and 2 had given 

Liftco an ongoing delivery role working in 

partnership with the PCT and Council. 

Understanding 

the Market 

Over the course of the project the Liftco process 

developed a challenge role that broke down 
barriers between organisations and encouraged 

dialogue. 

That the advantages of partnership working need 

to be taken account of / considered at the options 
appraisal stage. 

 

They also need to be communicated to 

stakeholders. 

P
a
g
e
 4

7



 

 

7.0 NEXT STEPS 

 

 Action Action 

Owner 

1. Present the Lessons Learned Report to the Joint Service 

Centres Project Board and the Strategic Partnering 
Board for information. 

D Grooby 

2. Present the Lessons Learned Report to Scrutiny Board. D Outram 

3. Feedback the Lessons Learned Report to the PCT. V Pejhan-
Sykes 

4. Present the Lessons Learned Report to the Public 

Private Partnerships Unit management team for 
information. 

D Grooby 

5. Dissemination to the project team. D Grooby 

6. Dissemination to PPPU Governance function who will 

then: 

• Be responsible for developing, maintaining and 
communicating a PPPU wide Lessons Learned Log 

and act as a central repository for valuable PPPU 
lessons learned information. 

• Share lessons learned with other Project Teams, 
Project Boards and the Strategic Investment Board. 

D Grooby 

7. The Council and PCT to consider the joint development 
of a cost benefit analysis / options appraisal tool. 

D Outram 
& V 

Pejhan-
Sykes 

 

Page 48



 
Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 
 
Scrutiny Board (City and Regional Partnerships) 
 
Date: 4th March 2010 
 
Subject: Current Work Programme 
 

        
 
 
 
1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 Appendix 1 to this report  provides Members with a copy of the Board’s current 

Work Programme.  
 
1.2 Appendix 2 is the current Forward Plan of Key Decisions for the period 1st March  

to 30th June 2010. 
 
1.3 Appendix 3 provides Members of the Board with the latest Executive Board minutes 
 
2.0 Recommendations 
 
2.1 The Board is requested to: 

 
(i) Determine from these documents whether there are any additional items the 

Board would wish to add to its Work Programme. 
 
(ii) Receive and make any changes to the attached Work Programme following 

decisions made at today’s meeting. 
 

Background Papers 

None 

Specific Implications For:  

 
Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected: All 

 
 

 

 

Originator: Richard Mills 
 

Tel:247 4557  

 Ward Members consulted 
 (referred to in report)  
 

Agenda Item 9

Page 49



Page 50

This page is intentionally left blank



SCRUTINY BOARD (CITY AND REGIONAL PARTNERSHIPS) OUTLINE WORK PROGRAMME - MARCH 2010                   
        APPENDIX 1 

Key:  
CCFA / RFS –Community call for action / request for scrutiny 
RP –  Review of existing policy 
DP – Development of new policy 
MSR – Monitoring scrutiny recommendations 
PM – Performance management 
B – Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny) 
SC – Statutory consultation 
CI – Call in 

Item Description Notes Type of 
item 

Meeting date –  4th March 2010                                    Deadline for receipt of Reports  15th February 2010 
 

Joint Service 
Centre Kirkstall 
 
 

To consider a report on lessons learned and identify 
recommendations for inclusion in a draft Statement to be 
considered at the next Board meeting 

This was last considered by 
the Board on 9th December 
2009   

RP/PM 

 
Comprehensive 
Area Assessment 
 

 
To consider a the first Area Assessment report produced under 
the new Comprehensive Area Assessment – this is the first round 
of reporting under this new framework which has completely 
replaced the annual star rating of the Comprehensive 
Performance Assessment (CPA).   

The Area Assessment report 
looks across all the public 
services in the city and 
provides a judgement on the 
city’s performance against 
the strategic priorities within 
the Leeds Strategic Plan The 
Board's role in reviewing this 
report is to look at the 
effectiveness of partnership 
working rather than at the 
specific performance issues 
highlighted which fall within 
the remit of the other 
Scrutiny Boards. 

  PM 

 
Pre Meeting Only 
 
 

To consider a draft final report and recommendations following 
conclusion of the Board's Inquiry on the Integrated Transport 
Strategies for Leeds and the wider region. 
 

  

P
a
g
e
 5

1



SCRUTINY BOARD (CITY AND REGIONAL PARTNERSHIPS) OUTLINE WORK PROGRAMME - MARCH 2010                   
        APPENDIX 1 

Key:  
CCFA / RFS –Community call for action / request for scrutiny 
RP –  Review of existing policy 
DP – Development of new policy 
MSR – Monitoring scrutiny recommendations 
PM – Performance management 
B – Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny) 
SC – Statutory consultation 
CI – Call in 

Meeting date – 16th April 2010                                     Deadline for receipt of Reports 30th March 2010 
 

Annual Report To approve the Board’s contribution to the Scrutiny Boards 
Annual Report 2009/010 for submission to Council. 
 
 

This is required under the 
Scrutiny Procedure Rules 

 

Joint Service 
Centre 
Kirkstall  
 

To consider a draft Statement and recommendations on the Joint 
Service Centre Kirkstall. 
 

 RP/PM 

Session 3 Inquiry 
on the Integrated 
Transport 
Strategies for 
Leeds and the 
wider region 
 

To consider a draft report and recommendations following 
conclusion of this inquiry. 

Final Inquiry Report    RP 

 

P
a
g
e
 5

2



 
APPENDIX 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 

FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS 
 
 
 

1 March 2010 – 30 June 2010 
 
 

 

P
a
g
e
 5

3



 
Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected 

Date of 
Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Documents to be 
Considered by Decision 

Maker 

Lead Officer 
(To whom 

representations should 
be made and email 
address to send 
representations to) 

LEEDS CITY COUNCIL 
 

FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS 
For the period 1 March 2010 to 30 June 2010 
 

Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected 
Date of 
Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Documents to be 
Considered by Decision 

Maker 

Lead Officer 
(To whom 

representations should 
be made and email 
address to send 
representations to) 

Leeds Arena, Proposed 
Appointment of Technical 
Monitoring Advisor 
To appoint a technical 
monitoring advisor on the 
proposed arena 
development for the 
duration of the design and 
build stage of the project. 

Director of City 
Development 
 
 

1/3/10 Arena Project Board 
 
 

Report to Director of City 
Development 
 

Director of City 
Development 
martin.farrington@leed
s.gov.uk 
 

P
a
g
e
 5

4



 
Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected 

Date of 
Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Documents to be 
Considered by Decision 

Maker 

Lead Officer 
(To whom 

representations should 
be made and email 
address to send 
representations to) 

Aiming High for Disabled 
Children Short Break 
Provision Phase 1 
To approve the award of 15 
month or 3+1+1 year 
contracts worth a total of 
£1.5 million to numerous 
organisations for the 
provision of short breaks 
for disabled children and 
young people via 
competitive tendering 

Director of 
Children's Services 
 
 

1/3/10 N/A 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Delegated Decision Report 
to be submitted to DMT 
 

Director of Children's 
Services 
judith.kahn@education
leeds.co.uk 
 

The award of a framework 
contract to provide modular 
teaching accommodation 
for leeds schools 
Approval to award a 
framework contract, to 
provide modular teaching 
accommodation for schools 
in leeds 

Deputy Director 
Children's Services 
(Commissioning & 
Partnerships) 
 
 

1/3/10 Schools in Leeds 
 
 

Tender evaluation report 
 

Deputy Director 
Children's Services 
(Commissioning & 
Partnerships) 
tony.palmer@leeds.go
v.uk 
 

P
a
g
e
 5

5



 
Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected 

Date of 
Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Documents to be 
Considered by Decision 

Maker 

Lead Officer 
(To whom 

representations should 
be made and email 
address to send 
representations to) 

The framework 
arrangement for the supply 
of vehicles and equipment 
without driver for a three 
year period February 2010 
to January 2013 with the 
option to extend for 12 
months 
To approve the framework 
arrangement for the supply 
of vehicles and equipment 
without driver for a three 
year period February 2010 
to January 2013 with the 
option to extend for 12 
months 

Chief Commercial 
Services Officer 
 
 

1/3/10 Procurement 
Department 
 
 

Tender Submissions 
 

Chief Commercial 
Services Officer 
carl.snowden@leeds.g
ov.uk 
 

Schools Capital Investment 
Partnership 2010/11 
Approval to carry out 
capital works and incur 
expenditure in respect of 
the 2010/11 Schools 
Capital Investment 
Partnership programme 

Director of 
Children's Services 
 
 

1/3/10 Leeds Schools 
 
 

Design and Cost report (to 
be submitted) 
 

Director of Children's 
Services 
tony.palmer@leeds.go
v.uk 
 

P
a
g
e
 5

6



 
Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected 

Date of 
Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Documents to be 
Considered by Decision 

Maker 

Lead Officer 
(To whom 

representations should 
be made and email 
address to send 
representations to) 

Schools Devolved Formula 
Capital Budgets 2010/11 
Approval to carry out 
capital works and incur 
expenditure at Leeds 
Schools, to be funded by 
Devolved Formula Capital 
Grant 

Director of 
Children's Services 
 
 

1/3/10 Leeds Schools 
 
 

Design and Cost Report (to 
be submitted) 
 

Director of Children's 
Services 
tony.palmer@leeds.go
v.uk 
 

Framework Agreement for 
Technical Advisors for PFI 
Projects 
Approval to issue OJEU 
notice for the procurement 
of the framework 
agreement 

Director of 
Resources 
 
 

1/3/10 Not applicable 
(Advisors from Client 
Departments) 
 
 

Report to Board 
 

Chief Officer (PPPU) 
david.outram@leeds.g
ov.uk 
 

P
a
g
e
 5

7



 
Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected 

Date of 
Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Documents to be 
Considered by Decision 

Maker 

Lead Officer 
(To whom 

representations should 
be made and email 
address to send 
representations to) 

Low Energy Combined 
Heat and Power Plant at 
Yarn Street 
The Council will receive 
and programme manage 
up to £1.7m capital funding 
on behalf of the homes and 
Communities Agency to 
grant fund a low carbon 
combines heat and power 
plant serving up to 280 new 
homes to be built at Yarn 
Street, Hunslet which will 
enable residents to benefit 
from low cost energy 

Director of 
Environment and 
Neighbourhoods 
 
 

1/3/10 Consultation has 
already taken place 
with the Homes and 
Community Agency 
and the site developer. 
Local consultation was 
undertaken for housing 
development at the 
site as part of the 
Planning Application 
process. 
 
 

Regeneration Management 
Team Report 
 

Director of 
Environment and 
Neighbourhoods 
peter-
anderson.beck@leeds.
gov.uk 
 

Tender for Neighbourhood 
Network Services 
Approval to award contract 
to Neighbourhood Network 
Service Providers 

Director of Adult 
Social Services 
 
 

1/3/10 Neighbourhood 
Network Project Board 
 
 

Procurement evaluation 
recommendations for 
contract award 
 

Director of Adult Social 
Services 
carol.mcgrath@leeds.g
ov.uk 
 

P
a
g
e
 5

8



 
Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected 

Date of 
Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Documents to be 
Considered by Decision 

Maker 

Lead Officer 
(To whom 

representations should 
be made and email 
address to send 
representations to) 

Request to invoke Contract 
Procedure Rule 31.1 and 
waive Contract Procedure 
Rule 13 in respect of the 
award of a contract to 
Methodist Homes to 
provide support and care to 
the residents of South 
Leeds Extra Care Housing 
Scheme 
To waive Contract 
Procedure Rules in respect 
of the award of the contract 
to provide support and care 
to the residents of South 
Leeds Extra Care Housing 
Scheme to Methodist 
Homes for the Aged 

Director of Adult 
Social Services 
 
 

1/3/10 Elected Members, 
local residents, service 
users 
 
 

Report to the Director 
 

Director of Adult Social 
Services 
tim.o'shea@leeds.gov.
uk 
 

Extension of the contracts 
for the provision of thirteen 
voluntary sector mental 
health service 
To approve a 12 month 
extension to the thirteen 
contracts 

Director of Adult 
Social Services 
 
 

1/3/10 Service Users and 
Stakeholders 
 
 

Service Review Reports 
 

Director of Adult Social 
Services 
sinead.gregan@leeds.
gov.uk 
 

P
a
g
e
 5

9



 
Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected 

Date of 
Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Documents to be 
Considered by Decision 

Maker 

Lead Officer 
(To whom 

representations should 
be made and email 
address to send 
representations to) 

St Anne's alcohol 
residential rehabilitation 
To extend the existing 
contract from 1 April 2010 
for up to 12 months to 
allow for a full tender 
exercise to be undertaken 

Director of Adult 
Social Services 
 
 

1/3/10 Pre tender 
consultation with 
service users and 
stakeholders 
 
 

Report to the Director, 
contract monitoring 
information 
 

Director of Adult Social 
Services 
sinead.cregan@leeds.
gov.uk 
 

Terry Yorath House 
To extend the contract for 
12 months to allow for a 
tendering exercise to be 
undertaken 

Director of Adult 
Social Services 
 
 

1/3/10 Service Users, 
Stakeholders and 
Carers 
 
 

None. 
 

Director of Adult Social 
Services 
sinead.cregan@leeds.
gov.uk 
 

Award of a four year 
framework contract to 
provide "Emergency Waste 
and Recycling Collections" 
To approve the award of 
the above contract to those 
organisations selected 
following a competitive 
procurement exercise 
using the accelerated 
restricted procedure 

Chief Officer 
Environmental 
Services 
 
 

1/3/10 Legal and Democratic 
Services, HR, 
Streetscene Services 
 
 

Contract Award Report 
 

Chief Officer 
Environmental 
Services 
susan.upton@leeds.go
v.uk 
 

P
a
g
e
 6

0



 
Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected 

Date of 
Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Documents to be 
Considered by Decision 

Maker 

Lead Officer 
(To whom 

representations should 
be made and email 
address to send 
representations to) 

Revised Nursery Fees 
2010/11 
To accept the proposed 
nursery fees for 2010/11 

Chief Officer - Early 
Years and 
Integrated Youth 
Service 
 
 

1/3/10 Executive Member 
 
 

Revised Nursery Fee 
Report 2010/11 
 

Chief Officer - Early 
Years and Integrated 
Youth Service 
andy.brown@leeds.go
v.uk 
 

Holbeck Urban Village - 
Section 106 Monies and 
Priorities for Spend 
To support the dark arches 
and green linkages projects 
as priorities for spend of 
section 106 monies 

Chief Planning 
Officer 
 
 

1/3/10 Wide ranging public 
consultation has 
previously been 
undertaken on the 
schemes under the 
remit of the HUV 
Public Realm Project 
Board and reported 
through regularly to 
the HUV Partnership 
Board. The report 
identifying the priorities 
for spend has been 
approved by the HUV 
Public Realm Board. 
The HUV Partnership 
Board to be consulted 
on the 4th March. 
 
 

Report 
 

Chief Planning Officer 
vanessa.allen@leeds.g
ov.uk 
 

P
a
g
e
 6

1



 
Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected 

Date of 
Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Documents to be 
Considered by Decision 

Maker 

Lead Officer 
(To whom 

representations should 
be made and email 
address to send 
representations to) 

Fresh Meat, Cooked meats 
and Halal provision 
Contract for Catering and 
Cleaning Services 
To proceed with PQQ and 
Tender specification for 
renewal of contract 

Director of 
Resources 
 
 

1/3/10 Group consultation on 
quality of product / 
Consultation with 
Existing Supplier / 
Muslim Panel 
 
 

Tender specifications 
 

Director of Resources 
mandy.snaith@leeds.g
ov.uk 
 

Advice Agency Grant 
Allocations 2010/11 
Approval of grant 
allocations to advice 
agencies in 2010/11 as 
follows: 
 
Leeds Citizens Advice 
Bureau                £763,715 
Chapeltown Citizens 
Advice Bureau       
£350,979 
Harehills and Chapeltown 
Law Centre    £173,383 

Chief Regeneration 
Officer, Environment 
and 
Neighbourhoods 
 
 

1/3/10 Consultation regarding 
priority areas for 
activities in 2010/11 
has been carried out 
with the advice 
agencies concerned 
 
 

Report to Regeneration 
Management Team 3rd 
February 2010 
 

Chief Regeneration 
Officer, Environment 
and Neighbourhoods 
julie.staton@leeds.gov.
uk 
 

P
a
g
e
 6

2



 
Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected 

Date of 
Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Documents to be 
Considered by Decision 

Maker 

Lead Officer 
(To whom 

representations should 
be made and email 
address to send 
representations to) 

Request to enter into a 
contract with Great Places 
(formerly Manchester 
Methodist Housing 
Association) 
Request to enter into a 
contractwith Great Places 
for St Anns Lodge and the 
Resettlement Services at 
an annual value of 
£478,474.79 

Director of 
Environment and 
Neighbourhoods 
 
 

1/3/10 N/A 
 
 

Report to be presented to 
the Delegated Decision 
Panel 
 

Director of 
Environment and 
Neighbourhoods 
neil.evans@leeds.gov.
uk 
 

Price Increases - 
Environmental Services 
The Chief Environmental 
Services Officer approves 
the changes to 
Environmental Services 
Charges for 2010/11 

Chief Officer 
Environmental 
Services 
 
 

1/3/10 With Members through 
the Budget Process 
 
 

Price Increase Report 
 

Chief Officer 
Environmental 
Services 
richard.ellis@leeds.gov
.uk 
 

P
a
g
e
 6

3



 
Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected 

Date of 
Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Documents to be 
Considered by Decision 

Maker 

Lead Officer 
(To whom 

representations should 
be made and email 
address to send 
representations to) 

Adult Social Care Home 
Care Contracts 
To extend the Adult Social 
Care cost/volume contracts 
and the independent living 
contracts to 31st August 
2010 to allow the 
directorate to procure a 
new type of domiciliary 
care contract from this 
date. 

Director of Adult 
Social Services 
 
 

1/3/10 Children’s and Adults 
Commissioning Board. 
 
 

None. 
 

Director of Adult Social 
Services 
mark.phillott@leeds.go
v.uk 
 

Request to invoke the first 
one year extension to the 
Supporting People 
Contract currently held with 
Touchstone 
Authorisation to invoke the 
first 12 month extension to 
the 3(+1+1) year contract 
currently held with 
Touchstone at an annual 
value of £543,953.21 

Director of 
Environment and 
Neighbourhoods 
 
 

1/3/10 N/A 
 
 

Report to be presented to 
the Delegated Decision 
Panel 
 

Director of 
Environment and 
Neighbourhoods 
neil.evans@leeds.gov.
uk 
 

P
a
g
e
 6

4



 
Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected 

Date of 
Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Documents to be 
Considered by Decision 

Maker 

Lead Officer 
(To whom 

representations should 
be made and email 
address to send 
representations to) 

Morley Conservation Area 
To amalgamate and extend 
the Morley Town Centre 
and Morley Dartmouth Park 
Conservation Area into the 
Morley Conservation Area 
and adopt the Morley 
Conservation Area 
Appraisal and Management 
Plan as non-statutory 
planning guidance 

Chief Planning 
Officer 
 
 

1/3/10 Ongoing consultation 
since May 2008 with 
the local community, 
Ward Members, 
Morley Town Council 
and other bodies 
 
 

Report and Morley 
Conservation Area 
Appraisal and Management 
Plan 
 

Chief Planning Officer 
richard.taylor@leeds.g
ov.uk 
 

Tall Buildings Design 
Guide 
To approve the Tall 
Buildings Design Guide as 
a Supplementary Planning 
Document (SPD) 

Chief Planning 
Officer 
 
 

1/3/10 Consultation on the 
draft document has 
already taken place 
consistent with the 
relevant requirements 
 
 

Executive Board Report 
 

Chief Planning Officer 
henry.skrzypecki@leed
s.gov.uk 
 

Voluntary Sector Grants 
Payment Schedule an 
Inflationary Uplift 2010/11 
The Director of Adult Social 
Services agree the grant 
payments to the voluntary 
sector for 2010/11 

Director of Adult 
Social Services 
 
 

4/3/10 Adult Commissioning 
Board 
 
 

Report to the 
Commisssioning Manager 
 

Director of Adult Social 
Services 
mark.phillot@leeds.go
v.uk 
 

P
a
g
e
 6

5



 
Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected 

Date of 
Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Documents to be 
Considered by Decision 

Maker 

Lead Officer 
(To whom 

representations should 
be made and email 
address to send 
representations to) 

Grants to Major Arts 
Organisations 
Approve levels of funding 

Chief Officer 
Libraries, Arts and 
Heritage 
 
 

4/3/10 Applications subject to 
scrutiny by appropriate 
officers 
 
 

Grant applications of Major 
Arts Organisations 
 

Chief Officer Libraries, 
Arts and Heritage 
catherine.blanshard@l
eeds.gov.uk 
 

New Generation Transport 
(NGT) Transport and 
Works Order 
To approve the proposed 
NGT alignment for the 
Transport and Works Order 
(TWAO) Submission 

Executive Board 
(Portfolio: City 
Development) 
 

10/3/10 Ongoing with key 
stakeholders, the bus 
operators, affected 
residents, Ward 
Members and Area 
Committees 
 
 

The report to be issued to 
the decision maker with the 
agenda for the meeting 
 

Chief Officer 
(Highways and 
Transportation) 
francis.linley@leeds.go
v.uk 
 

Former Royal Park School 

• Consideration of 
offers for disposal of 
property 

• Consideration of 
request to waive 
payment of Court 
costs 

Executive Board 
(Portfolio: 
Development and 
Regeneration) 
 

10/3/10 Hyde Park and 
Woodhouse and 
Headingley Ward 
Members 
 
 

The report to be issued to 
the decision maker with the 
agenda for the meeting 
 

Director of City 
Development 
john.ramsden@leeds.g
ov.uk 
 

Review of Local 
Development Schemes 
To agree changes to the 
current scheme 

Executive Board 
(Portfolio: 
Development and 
Regeneration) 
 

10/3/10 Executive Member 
 
 

The report to be issued 
tothe decision maker with 
the agenda for the meeting 
 

Director of City 
Development 
steve.speak@leeds.go
v.uk 
 

P
a
g
e
 6

6



 
Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected 

Date of 
Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Documents to be 
Considered by Decision 

Maker 

Lead Officer 
(To whom 

representations should 
be made and email 
address to send 
representations to) 

Large Casino Licence 
To agree the 
commencement of the 
process for the award of 
the large casino licence 

Executive Board 
(Portfolio: 
Development and 
Regeneration) 
 

10/3/10 n/a 
 
 

The report to be issued to 
the decision maker with the 
agenda for the meeting 
 

Director of City 
Development 
martin.farrington@leed
s.gov.uk 
 

Community Asset Strategy 
Approval requested 

Executive Board 
(Portfolio: 
Development and 
Regeration) 
 

10/3/10 Asset Management 
Board 24th July 
 
 

The report to be issued to 
the decision maker with the 
agenda for the meeting 
 

Director of City 
Development 
john.ramsden@leeds.g
ov.uk 
 

Household Waste Sorting 
Site (HWSS) Strategic 
Review 
Agree 

• Policy for provision 
of HWSS based on 
national standards, 
best practise and 
Leeds specific 
population/tonnage 
data 

• Policy on cross 
border use 

• Number of HWSS 
required in total 

Executive Board 
(Portfolio: 
Environmental 
Services) 
 

10/3/10 Previously undertaken 
 
 

The report to be issued to 
the decision maker with the 
agenda for the meeting 
 

Chief Officer 
Environmental 
Services 
susan.upton@leeds.go
v.uk 
 

P
a
g
e
 6

7



 
Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected 

Date of 
Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Documents to be 
Considered by Decision 

Maker 

Lead Officer 
(To whom 

representations should 
be made and email 
address to send 
representations to) 

Self Directed Support 
Recent progress report on 
SDS implementation and 
agree start date for SDS 
and all new customers 

Executive Board 
(Portfolio: Adult 
Health and Social 
Care) 
 

10/3/10  
 
 

The report to be issued to 
the decision maker with the 
agenda for the meeting 
 

Director of Adult Social 
Services 
john.lennon@leeds.go
v.uk 
 

Investment Strategy for 
South Leeds - Progress 
Report and Changes to the 
Board 
Note and support the 
programme and changes to 
the Board 

Executive Board 
(Portfolio: 
Development and 
Regeneration) 
 

10/3/10  
 
 

The report to be issued to 
the decision maker with the 
agenda for the meeting 
 

Director of City 
Development 
phil.crabtree@leeds.go
v.uk 
 

Award of autism supported 
living framework 
arrangement and 
immediate subsequent 
award of contract for 17 
bed autism supported living 
service 
To agree the award of 
framework, and note the 
subsequent tender award 

Director of Adult 
Social Services 
 
 

1/4/10 Service Users and 
Carers have been 
involved in the process 
 
 

A Delegated Decision Panel 
Report 
 

Director of Adult Social 
Services 
helen.gee@leeds.gov.
uk 
 

P
a
g
e
 6

8



 
Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected 

Date of 
Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Documents to be 
Considered by Decision 

Maker 

Lead Officer 
(To whom 

representations should 
be made and email 
address to send 
representations to) 

East Leeds Household 
Waste Sort Site Re-
development 
To award contract to 
redevelop this waste 
recycling facility 

Chief Officer 
Environmental 
Services 
 
 

1/4/10 Local residents and 
Councillors prior to 
works commencing 
 
 

Tender Documents 
 

Chief Officer 
Environmental 
Services 
susan.upton@leeds.go
v.uk 
 

Catering Consumables 
Contract for Catering and 
Cleaning Services 
To proceed with PQQ and 
Tender specification for 
renewal of contract 

Director of 
Resources 
 
 

1/4/10 Group consultation on 
quality of product / 
Consultation with 
Existing Supplier 
 
 

Tender Specifications 
 

Director of Resources 
mandy.snaith@leeds.g
ov.uk 
 

Provision of Community 
Living Project for Children 
and Young People in 
Leeds 
Delegated Decision 
Required to Commission a 
Community Living Service 
for Young People 

Chief Officer - 
Children and Young 
People Social Care 
 
 

1/4/10 n/a 
 
 

Report to be presented to 
the Delegated Decision 
Panel 
 

Chief Officer - Children 
and Young People 
Social Care 
mary.cousins@leeds.g
ov.uk 
 

P
a
g
e
 6

9



 
Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected 

Date of 
Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Documents to be 
Considered by Decision 

Maker 

Lead Officer 
(To whom 

representations should 
be made and email 
address to send 
representations to) 

Grounds Maintenance 
Contract 

Executive Board 
(Portfolio: 
Environmental 
Services) 
 

7/4/10 Various key 
stakeholders have 
been consulted, 
including all Area 
Committees, as set out 
in the report 
 
 

The report to be isued to 
the decision maker with the 
agenda for the meeting 
 

Chief Officer 
Environmental 
Services 
stephen.smith@leeds.
gov.uk 
 

P
a
g
e
 7

0



 
Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected 

Date of 
Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Documents to be 
Considered by Decision 

Maker 

Lead Officer 
(To whom 

representations should 
be made and email 
address to send 
representations to) 

Update to Executive Board 
on Lettings Policy Review 
This report updates 
Executive Board on 
developments since the 
Executive Board meeting in 
July 2009, and is on the 
government’s statutory 
guidance on allocations. It 
covers progress made on: 

• Improving the 
management and 
allocation of tenancies 

• Greater sharing of 
information with the 
Police 

• the possibility of 
developing quotas or 
giving higher preference 
to good tenants 

• incorporating 
government guidance 
which allows local 
authorities to give 
greater preference to 
meet local priorities 

• ensuring the proposals 
for the lettings policy 
review are legally 
robust and contribute to 
the Council’s equality 
duties 

Executive Board 
(Portfolio: 
Neighbourhoods 
and Housing) 
 

7/4/10  
 
 

The report to be issued to 
the decision maker with the 
agenda for the meeting 
 

Chief Housing 
Services Officer 
kathryn.bramall@leeds
.gov.uk 
 

P
a
g
e
 7

1



 
Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected 

Date of 
Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Documents to be 
Considered by Decision 

Maker 

Lead Officer 
(To whom 

representations should 
be made and email 
address to send 
representations to) 

Joint Commissioning and 
Service Integration with 
Health: Next Steps 
Executive Board are 
requested to approve the 
next stage of the 
programme of work to 
further joint commissioning 
and service integration 
between Health Services 
and Leeds City Council 

Executive Board 
(Portfolio: Adult 
Health and Social 
Care) 
 

7/4/10 Stakeholders and 
Partners 
 
 

The report to be issued to 
the decision maker with the 
agenda for the meeting 
 

Director of Adult Social 
Services 
john.england@leeds.g
ov.uk 
 

To award a contract to 
Methodist Homes 
Request to waive contract 
procedure rule 13 in 
respect of the Moor 
Allerton Extra Care 
Housing Scheme (Yew 
Tree Court) and Dementia 
Day Care Scheme (Bay 
Tree Resource Centre) 

Director of Adult 
Social Services 
 
 

7/4/09 Legal and 
Procurement 
 
 

Report to the DASS 
 

Director of Adult Social 
Services 
dennis.holmes@leeds.
gov.uk 
 

P
a
g
e
 7

2



 
Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected 

Date of 
Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Documents to be 
Considered by Decision 

Maker 

Lead Officer 
(To whom 

representations should 
be made and email 
address to send 
representations to) 

Major Building Works in 
relation to the Expansion of 
a number of Primary 
Schools in Leeds 
Approval to proceed with a 
major building programme 
to expand a number of 
primary schools in Leeds 
during 2010 in order to 
accommodate additional 
school pupils, and to incur 
expenditure from the 
approved capital 
programme 

Executive Board 
(Portfolio: Children's 
Services) 
 

7/4/10 All schools that will be 
subject to building 
works, Leeds City 
Council Planning 
Department 
 
 

The report to be issued to 
the decision maker with the 
agenda for the meeting 
 

Chief Executive of 
Education Leeds 
tony.palmer@educatio
nleeds.co.uk 
 

Holbeck Urban Village 
Programme - Priorities and 
Governance Arrangements 
To support the proposed 
governance arrangements 
set out in the report. To 
support the boundary 
change to HUV as set out 
in the report 

Executive Board 
(Portfolio: 
Development and 
Regeneration) 
 

7/4/10 HUV Partnerships 
Board (4th March), 
Beeston Hill and 
Holbeck Board, Leeds 
Property Forum, 
Neighbourhoods and 
Housing, Yorkshire 
Forward 
 
 

The report to be added to 
the decision maker with the 
agenda for the meeting 
 

Director of City 
Development 
colin.mawhinney@leed
s.gov.uk 
 

P
a
g
e
 7

3



 
Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected 

Date of 
Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Documents to be 
Considered by Decision 

Maker 

Lead Officer 
(To whom 

representations should 
be made and email 
address to send 
representations to) 

The Leeds Regeneration 
Framework, 2010 to 2030 
Approval of the Leeds 
Regeneration Framework. 
This includes :- 
 

1. The strategy 
element, which 
consists of the 
Vision, the new 
objectives and the 
mechanism for 
determining where, 
when and how 
regeneration should 
take place across 
Leeds over the next 
20 years. 

2. The programme 
element, which sets 
out the headline 
milestones to be 
achieved within 
each of our current 
and planned major 
regeneration 
programmes. 

Executive Board 
(Portfolio: 
Neighbourhoods 
and Housing) 
 

7/4/10 A wide-ranging consultation 
process has been ongoing 
since sept 2009. This has 
been led by the Chief 
Regeneration Officer, and 
has involved a large 
number of internal and 
external stakeholders. 
Papers on the proposed 
framework have been 
taken to, and supported by, 
a number of key groups, 
including Strategic 
Leadership Team, 
Worklessness Strategic 
Outcomes Group and 
Narrowing the Gap Board. 
In addition, consultation 
has taken place with senior 
management teams across 
the Council, and with 
Members and Chief 
Officers. Further 
consultation is planned for 
early next year, including 
with the Youth Parliament.  

 
 

The report to be issued to 
the decision maker with the 
agenda for the meeting 
 

Director of 
Environment and 
Neighbourhoods 
stephen.boyle@leeds.
gov.uk 
 

P
a
g
e
 7

4



 
Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected 

Date of 
Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Documents to be 
Considered by Decision 

Maker 

Lead Officer 
(To whom 

representations should 
be made and email 
address to send 
representations to) 

Formation of New 
Children's Trust Board and 
Revised Leeds 
Safeguarding Children 
Board 
Executive Board will be 
asked to endorse the 
proposal to establish a new 
Children’s Trust Board and 
revised Leeds 
Safeguarding Children 
Board 

Executive Board 
(Portfolio: Children's 
Services) 
 

7/4/10 Discussions and 
consultation with a 
range of partners and 
stakeholders, including 
partners currently 
involved in existing 
Children’s Trust 
arrangements. 
 
 

The report to be issued to 
the decision maker with the 
agenda for the meeting 
 

Director of Children's 
Services 
martyn@stenton@leed
s.gov.uk 
 

A653 Dewsbury Road Bus 
Priority Measures, Ring 
Road, Beeston Park Bus 
Lane 
Permission to construct the 
scheme, subject to 
satisfactory funding 
arrangements being in 
place on return of tenders. 
The works are required to 
provide a quality bus 
corridor identified in the 
LTP and are an intrinsic 
part of the Yorkshire Bus 
Initiative.  

Executive Board 
(Portfolio: 
Development and 
Regeneration) 
 

7/4/10 Initial Member 
consultation has taken 
place. 
 
 

The report to be issued to 
the decision maker with the 
agenda for the meeting 
 

Director of City 
Development 
jean.dent@leeds.gov.u
k 
 

P
a
g
e
 7

5



 
Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected 

Date of 
Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Documents to be 
Considered by Decision 

Maker 

Lead Officer 
(To whom 

representations should 
be made and email 
address to send 
representations to) 

West Leeds SILC 
outcomes of consultation 

Executive Board 
(Portfolio: Children's 
Services) 
 

7/4/10  
 
 

The report to be issued to 
the decision makerwith the 
agenda for the meeting 
 

Chief Executive of 
Education Leeds 
stuart.gosney@leeds.g
ov.uk 
 

Outcome of consultation on 
proposals to make changes 
to Horsforth Primary 
Schools 
Permission to publish 
statutory notice to make 
changes to Horsforth 
Primary Schools 

Executive Board 
(Portfolio: Children's 
Services) 
 

7/4/10 Consultation ran 
Jan/Feb 2010, 
statutory notice likely 
to run April/May 2010 
 
 

The report to the decision 
maker with the agenda for 
the meeting 
 

Chief Executive of 
Education Leeds 
george.turnbull@educ
ationleeds.co.uk 
 

The future of Girls only 
provision in Leeds 
To receive the outcome of 
public consultation and 
consider the publication of 
a Statutory Notice 

Executive Board 
(Portfolio: Children's 
Services) 
 

7/4/10 Detailed in report 
 
 

The report to be issued to 
the decision maker with the 
agenda for the meeting 
 

Chief Executive of 
Education Leeds 
ros.vahey@educationl
eeds.co.uk 
 

The future of Primrose high 
school 
To receive the outcome of 
public consultation and 
consider the publication of 
a statutory notice 

Executive Board 
(Portfolio: Children's 
Services) 
 

7/4/10 Detailed in report 
 
 

The report to be issued to 
the decision maker with the 
agenda for the meeting 
 

Chief Executive of 
Education Leeds 
dorothy.smith@educati
onleeds.co.uk 
 

P
a
g
e
 7

6



 
Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected 

Date of 
Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Documents to be 
Considered by Decision 

Maker 

Lead Officer 
(To whom 

representations should 
be made and email 
address to send 
representations to) 

The future of Parklands 
girls school 
To receive the outcome of 
public consultation and 
consider the publication of 
a Statutory Notice 

Executive Board 
(Portfolio: Children's 
Services) 
 

7/4/10 Detailed in report 
 
 

The report to be issued to 
the decision makerwith the 
agenda for the meeting 
 

Chief Executive of 
Education Leeds 
pat.toner@educationle
eds.co.uk 
 

The Future of the City of 
Leeds School 
To receive the outcome of 
public consultation and 
consider the publication of 
a Statutory Notice 

Executive Board 
(Portfolio: Children's 
Services) 
 

7/4/10 Detailed in report 
 
 

The report to be issued to 
the decision maker with the 
agenda for the meeting 
 

Chief Executive of 
Education Leeds 
dorothy.smith@leeds.g
ov.uk 
 

Outcome of consultation on 
proposals to expand six 
primary schools 
Permission to publish 
statutory notice to expand 
six primary schools 

Executive Board 
(Portfolio: Children's 
Services) 
 

7/4/10 Consultation ran 
Jan/Feb 2010, 
statutory notice likely 
to run April/May 2010 
 
 

The report to be issued to 
the decision maker with the 
agenda for the meeting 
 

Chief Executive of 
Education Leeds 
george.turnbull@educ
ationleeds.co.uk 
 

Asset Management Plan 
and Capital Strategy 
Approval of the Capital 
Strategy and Asset 
Management Plan  

Executive Board 
(Portfolio: 
Development and 
Regeneration) 
 

7/4/10  
 
 

The report to be issued to 
the decision maker with the 
agenda for the meeting 
 

Director of City 
Development 
john.ramsden@leeds.g
ov.uk 
 

P
a
g
e
 7

7



 
Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected 

Date of 
Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Documents to be 
Considered by Decision 

Maker 

Lead Officer 
(To whom 

representations should 
be made and email 
address to send 
representations to) 

Free swim Capital 
Modernisation - Pot 4 
To inject Sport England 
Capital Grant and LCC 
match funding into the 
Capital Programme and 
request authority to spend 

Executive Board 
(Portfolio:Developm
ent and 
Regeneration) 
 

7/4/10 Executive Member 
 
 

The report to be issued to 
the decision maker with the 
agenda for the meeting 
 

Director of City 
Development 
mark.allman@leeds.go
v.uk 
 

Agenda for Improved 
Economic Performance 
To agree the “Agenda for 
Improved Economic 
Performance” as part of the 
Council’s Budget and 
Policy Framework 

Executive Board 
(Portfolio: 
Development and 
Regeneration) 
 

7/4/10 Draft has been subject 
to widespread 
consultation and to be 
considered by Scrutiny 
Board in February 
2010 
 
 

The report to be issued to 
the decision maker with the 
agenda for the meeting 
 

Director of City 
Development 
paul.stephens@leeds.
gov.uk 
 

Outcome of the 
consultation on 2011 
admission arrangements 
Approval of the 
recommendations 

Executive Board 
(Portfolio: Children's 
Services) 
 

7/4/10 4th December 2009 to 
5th February 2010 
 
 

The report to be issued to 
the decision maker with the 
agenda for the meeting 
 

Chief Executive of 
Education Leeds 
barbara.comiskey@lee
ds.gov.uk 
 

Review of Area Functions 
Endorsement of the review 
of Area Functions for 
2010/11 

Executive Board 
(Portfolio: 
Environment and 
Neighbourhoods) 
 

19/5/10 Elected Members, 
Area Committees, 
Regeneration 
Management Teams 
 
 

The report is to be issued to 
the decision maker with the 
agenda for the meeting 
 

Director of 
Environment and 
Neighbourhoods 
liz.jarmin@leeds.gov.u
k 
 

P
a
g
e
 7

8



 
Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected 

Date of 
Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Documents to be 
Considered by Decision 

Maker 

Lead Officer 
(To whom 

representations should 
be made and email 
address to send 
representations to) 

Mobile solution for 
Archouse 
February 2010 

Executive Board 
(Portfolio: 
Neighbourhoods 
and Housing) 
 

19/5/10 With Arms Length 
Management 
Organisations and 
Belle Isle Management 
Organisation 
 
 

The report to be issued to 
the decision maker with the 
agenda for the meeting 
 

Director of 
Environment and 
Neighbourhoods 
simeon.perry@leeds.g
ov.uk 
 

Sustainable Buildings 
Strategy 
Approval requested 

Executive Board 
(Portfolio: 
Development and 
Regeneration) 
 

19/5/10 September Strategic 
Investment Board 
 
 

The report to be issued to 
the decision maker with the 
agenda for the meeting 
 

Director of City 
Development 
john.ramsden@leeds.g
ov.uk 
 

Collection of Local 
Taxation 
Approval of Council Tax 
and Business Rate write 
offs for the period 1st 
October 2009 to 31st March 
2010 

Chief Revenues and 
Benefits Officer 
 
 

1/6/10 Director of Resources 
 
 

Report on values by type 
 

Chief Revenues and 
Benefits Officer 
steve.carey@leeds.lov.
uk 
 

Collection of debts other 
than Local Taxation 
Approval to write off debts 
other than Local Taxation 
for the period 1st April 2009 
to 31st March 2010 

Chief Revenues and 
Benefits Officer 
 
 

1/6/10 Director of Resources 
 
 

Report on values by type 
 

Chief Revenues and 
Benefits Officer 
peter.hutchinson@leed
s.gov.uk 
 

P
a
g
e
 7

9



 
Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected 

Date of 
Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Documents to be 
Considered by Decision 

Maker 

Lead Officer 
(To whom 

representations should 
be made and email 
address to send 
representations to) 

The Future of Council 
Housing Project 
The project’s objective is to 
deliver an appraisal which 
will identify, assess and 
recommend the most 
desirable, viable and 
achievable option(s) to 
deliver the long term vision 
for council housing in 
Leeds 

Executive Board 
(Portfolio: 
Neighbourhoods 
and Housing) 
 

16/6/10 With all key 
stakeholders including 
Members, Tenants 
and Leaseholders, 
Housing Providers 
internal and external 
 
 

The report to be issued to 
the decision maker with the 
agenda for the meeting 
 

Chief Housing 
Services Officer 
neil.evans@leeds.gov.
uk 
 

Review of the in-house 
Community Support 
Domiciliary Care Service 
To approve proposed 
changes including the 
development of a 
reablement service 

Executive Board 
(Portfolio: Adult 
Health and Social 
Care) 
 

16/6/10 Area Committees and 
Ward Councillors 
 
 

The report is to be issued to 
the decision maker with the 
agenda for the meeting 
 

Director of Adult Social 
Services 
lynda.bowen@leeds.g
ov.uk 
 

P
a
g
e
 8

0



 
Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected 

Date of 
Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Documents to be 
Considered by Decision 

Maker 

Lead Officer 
(To whom 

representations should 
be made and email 
address to send 
representations to) 

Winrose Supported 
Housing Project - Lease 
To approve the creation of 
a lease at less than best 
consideration between the 
Council and Belle Isle 
Tenant Management 
Organisation to cover 10 
supported housing units at 
the Winrose Project, 54 
Winrose Drive, LS10, 
Leeds. This will enable 
BITMO to give residents 
the appropriate form of 
tenure to comply with the 
Supporting People contract 
for the project 

Executive Board 
(Portfolio: 
Neighbourhoods 
and Housing) 
 

16/6/10 Previously undertaken 
with residents and 
local Councillors 
 
 

The report is to be issued to 
the decision maker with the 
agenda for the meeting 
 

Chief Housing 
Services Officer 
maureen.boyle@leeds.
gov.uk 
 

 

P
a
g
e
 8

1



 
 

P
a
g
e
 8

2



Appendix 3 

 

EXECUTIVE BOARD 
 

FRIDAY, 12TH FEBRUARY, 2010 
 

PRESENT: 
 

Councillor A Carter in the Chair 

 Councillors R Brett, J L Carter, R Finnigan, 
S Golton, R Harker, P Harrand, 
J Monaghan, J Procter and K Wakefield  

 
   Councillor R Lewis – Non-Voting Advisory Member 
 

175 Exclusion of the Public  
RESOLVED –  That the public be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following parts of the agenda designated as exempt on 
the grounds that it is likely, in view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or the nature of the proceedings, that if members of the public 
were present there would be disclosure to them of exempt information as 
follows:- 
 
(a) Appendix B to the report referred to in minute 181 under the terms of 

Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3) and on the grounds that 
it is not publicly available from the statutory registers of information 
kept in relation to certain companies and charities.  It is considered that 
since this information has been prepared for the Council’s assessment 
of various property transactions then it is not in the public interest to 
disclose this information at this point in time.  Also the release of such 
information would or would be likely to prejudice the Council’s 
commercial interests in relation to and undermine its attempts to 
acquire by agreement similar properties in the locality in that owners of 
other similar properties would be aware about the nature and level of 
consideration which may prove acceptable to the Council.  It is 
considered that whilst there may be a public interest in disclosure, 
much of this information will be available from the Land Registry 
following completion of the purchase and consequently the public 
interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing this information at this point in time.   
 

(b) Appendix 1 to the report referred to in minute 188 under the terms of 
Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3) and appendix 2 to the 
same report under 10.4(3,6), and on the grounds that it contains 
information about the commercial position of the City Council in relation 
to the proposed procurement; information which would reveal action 
the authority proposes to take under legislation, in relation to identified 
sites which are subject to separate consultation in the first instance 
with residents and staff concerned. The public interest of maintaining 
the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing such 
information. Whilst it is considered that there is public interest in 
disclosure of this information at the earliest opportunity, it is deemed 
more appropriate, and consequently of greater public interest to ensure 

Page 83



 

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 10th March, 2010 

 

that the information is released once a decision has been made by 
Executive Board.   
 

(c) Appendix 1 to the report referred to in minute 189 under the terms of 
Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3) and on the grounds that 
it contains information which if disclosed to the public would, or would 
be likely to prejudice the commercial interests of the Council. The 
Appendix contains commercially sensitive information which if 
disclosed may prejudice the future negotiation of the contract for the 
project. 
 

(d) Appendices 1 and 2 to the report referred to in minute 185 under the 
terms of Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4 (3) and on the 
basis that it contains information relating to the financial or business 
affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that 
information) which if disclosed to the public would, or would be likely to 
prejudice the commercial interests of that person or of the Council. The 
proposals have been considered in terms of the benefit that the Council 
would seek as part of any proposal to make its land available to 
facilitate any S106 requirements.  
 

(e) Appendices B and C to the report referred to in minute 194 under the 
terms of Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4 (3) and on the 
grounds that they contain information that is commercially sensitive 
relating to the Council’s ongoing waste PFI procurement and the 
financial and business affairs of Bidders, where the benefit of keeping 
the information confidential is considered greater than that of allowing 
public access to the information.  

 
176 Declaration of Interests  

Councillor Wakefield declared personal interests  in the matters referred to in 
minute 179 as a school and college governor and a personal and prejudicial 
interest in the matters referred to in minute 185 as a consequence of a close 
personal association connected to Farsley Celtic.  
 

177 Minutes  
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 6th January 2010 be 
approved. 
 
DEVELOPMENT AND REGENERATION 
 

178 Items relating to the New Generation Transport (NGT) Scheme  
RESOLVED -  That consideration of the two items entered on the agenda 
relating to the New Generation Transport scheme be deferred to the next 
meeting of the Board. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 84



 

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 10th March, 2010 

 

CENTRAL AND CORPORATE 
 

179 Revenue Budget 2010/2011 and Capital Programme  
(A) Revenue Budget 2010/11 and Council Tax 2010/11 

The Director of Resources submitted a report on the proposals for the 
City Council’s Revenue Budget for 2010/11, on the Leeds element of 
the Council Tax to be levied in 2010/11 and the Council House rents 
for 2010/11. In presenting the report the Director indicated that the final 
determination in respect of the Housing Revenue Account Subsidy was 
at variance with the figure contained in the papers as submitted to the 
Board. It was proposed that the estimates for the Housing Revenue 
Accounts be amended for submission to Council, reflecting the final 
subsidy determination with a subsequent increase in the HRA 
reserves. It was reported that a further report will be submitted to the 
Board with proposals on the use of these additional resources in 
2010/11. 
 
On behalf of the Board, the Chair paid tribute to all those officers who 
had been involved in the preparation of the 2010/11 budget and 
thanked them for their efforts. 
 
RESOLVED –   
(a) That Council be recommended to approve the Revenue Budget  

for 2010/11 totalling £569,295,000, as detailed and explained in 
the submitted report and accompanying papers, including a 2.5% 
increase in the Leeds element of the Council Tax, subject to 
appropriate amendments to the report for submission to Council to 
reflect the final determination in respect of the Housing Revenue 
Account. 

 
(b) That with respect to the Housing Revenue Account Council be 

recommended to: 
(i) approve the budget at the average rent increase of figure 

of   3.1%  
(ii) increase the charges for garage rents to £6.07 per week 
(iii) increase service charges in line with rents (3.1%) 

 
(B) Capital Programme Update 2009-2014 

The Director of Resources submitted a report setting out the updated 
Capital Programme for 2009-2014. A page containing revised 
recommendations had been circulated to all members in advance of 
the meeting. 
 

           RESOLVED –   
(a) That the following be recommended to Council: 

(i) That the capital programme, as attached to the submitted 
report, be approved and that the list of schemes shown at 
Appendix H to the report be reserved until additional 
resources become available; 

Page 85



 

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 10th March, 2010 

 

(ii) That the Executive Board be authorised to approve in 
year amendments to the capital programme including 
transfers from and to the reserved programme in 
accordance with Financial Procedure Rules; 

(iii) That the proposed Minimum Revenue Provision policies 
for 2010/11 as set out in 5.3 of the report and explained 
in Appendix G be approved; 

(iv) That the Minimum Revenue Provision policies for 
2009/10 be amended as set out in 5.3.3 of the report. 

 
(b) That the list of land and property sites shown in appendix F to 

the report be disposed of to generate capital receipts to support 
the capital programme 

 
(c) That the Director of Resources be authorised to  manage, 

monitor and control scheme progress and commitments to 
ensure that the programme is affordable. 

 
(C) Treasury Management Strategy 2010/2011 

The Director of Resources submitted a report on the Treasury 
Management Policy and Strategy for 2010/11 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That approval be given to the initial treasury strategy for 2010/11 

as set out in Section 3.3  of the report and that  the review of the 
2009/10 strategy and operations set out in Sections 3.1 and 3.2 
be noted. 

 
(b) That Council be recommended to set  borrowing limits for 

2009/10, 2010/11. 2011/12 and 2012/13 as set out in Section 
3.4 of the report. 

 
(c) That Council be recommended to set treasury management 

indicators for 2009/10, 2010/11,2011/12 and 2012/13 as set out 
in Section 3.5 of the report. 

 
(d) That Council be recommended to set investment limits for 

2009/10. 2010/11, 2011/12 and 2012/13 as set out in Section 
3.6 of the report. 

 
(e) That Council be recommended to adopt  the revised CIPFA 

Treasury Management Code of Practice 2009 and revised 
Prudential Code. 

 
(The matters referred to in parts A(a), A(b), B(a) (i) to (iv) and C(b) to (e) 
being matters reserved to Council were not eligible for Call In) 
 
(Under the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 16.5 Councillor Wakefield 
required it to be recorded that he abstained from voting on the decisions 
referred to in parts (A) and (B) of this minute) 

Page 86



 

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 10th March, 2010 

 

 
180 Financial Health Monitoring 2009/10 - Quarter Three Report  

The Director of Resources submitted a report on the financial position of the 
authority after nine months of the financial year in respect of the revenue 
budget and the housing revenue account. 
 
RESOLVED – That the projected financial position of the authority after nine 
months of the financial year be noted. 
 

181 Changing the Workplace Report and Business Case  
The Director of Resources submitted a report presenting the objectives and 
proposals for the Changing the Workplace programme, with particular focus 
on the delivery of phase 1 of the initiative in the city centre. 
 
Following consideration of Appendix B to the report, designated as exempt 
under Access to Information Procedure Rules 10.4(3), which was considered 
in private at the conclusion of the meeting it was 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That the programme for changing the workplace as outlined in the 

report be supported 
 
(b) That the recommendations for phase 1 as detailed in paragraph 5 of 

the exempt appendix, and with regard to the following matters, be 
approved 

 
1. The negotiation of terms for the acquisition of a building  on the 

terms detailed in the appendix or procuring the construction of 
a building. 
 

2. Seeking release of freehold and leasehold properties as 
proposed. 

  
3. Agreement to the level of fees proposed for specialist property 

advice. 
  
4. Agreement to the reinvestment of the property efficiency 

savings plus 5% of other efficiencies to be delivered  through 
the Changing the Workplace programme, to support delivery of 
the new workplaces, technology, programme resource and 
training for phase 1. 

  
5. Agreement that the Director of Resources bring a further report 

to this Board regarding a preferred option. 
 

182 City Card  
The Assistant Chief Executive (Policy, Planning and Improvement) submitted 
a report outlining a proposal for the introduction and implementation of the 
City Card scheme as part of the Council’s Business Transformation 

Page 87



 

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 10th March, 2010 

 

programme, as a phased development, focussing in Phase 1 on City 
Development. 
 
RESOLVED – That approval be given to an injection of £692,000 into the 
Capital Programme, and that authority be given to incur expenditure of 
£1,342,000 to implement phase one of the City Card project. 
 
(Under the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 16.5 Councillor Wakefield 
required it to be recorded that he abstained from voting on this matter pending 
receipt of a detailed briefing with regard to the proposals)   
 

183 Scrutiny - Half Year Report  
The Chief Democratic Services Officer submitted a report introducing the first 
half yearly report with respect to the operation of the Scrutiny function in 
Leeds. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be received. 
 
DEVELOPMENT AND REGENERATION 
 

184 Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment 2009  
The Director of City Development submitted a report summarising the key 
aspects of, and presenting for approval, the Leeds Strategic Housing Land 
Availability Assessment (SHLAA) for 2009. 
 
In presenting the report, the Chair thanked all those officers within City 
Development who had been involved in the preparation of the Leeds SHLAA 
document for 2009. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Leeds Strategic Housing Land Availability 
Assessment 2009 be approved for publication. 
 

185 Farsley Celtic Administration  
The Director of City Development submitted a report on two proposals in 
relation to the future use of the Farsley Celtic facility, the Council’s interests in 
the site and the need to inform the Administrator with regard to the Council’s 
intentions in the matter.  
 
Following consideration of Appendices 1 and 2 to the report, designated as 
exempt under Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3), which were 
considered in private at the conclusion to the meeting it was 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That Members being satisfied that assisting FC 2010 Limited would 

promote the social and environmental wellbeing of the area, assistance 
be offered to FC 2010 Limited as a means of supporting their proposed 
Creditor Voluntary Arrangement and that approval be given to the 
following: 

 

Page 88



 

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 10th March, 2010 

 

(i) The use of the Council land shown on plan 1 attached to the 
submitted report to support the delivery of any Section 106 
Agreement required for Chartford Homes’ adjacent residential 
development. 

 
(ii) The use of the Council’s land at less than best consideration, at 

a peppercorn, on a licence or leasehold basis, on final terms to 
be approved by the Chief Asset Management Officer. 

(iii) To utilise the Council’s Prudential Borrowing powers to provide a 
loan to FC 2010 Limited on the basis of the Heads of Terms 
outlined in Appendix 2 of the report, subject to the Director of 
Resources being satisfied with the outcome of the final due 
diligence undertaken and the final terms agreed. 

(b) That in the event that FC 2010 Limited’s proposal is not acceptable to 
the Administrator, officers be authorised to pursue alternative courses 
of action in the terms now indicated. 

(c) That this decision be exempt from Call In due to the matter being 
considered urgent, and that Call In may result in the Administrator 
seeking to liquidate the Football Club’s assets without further delay. 

(Councillor Wakefield, having declared a personal and prejudicial interest, left 
the meeting during the consideration of this matter)  

NEIGHBOURHOODS AND HOUSING 
 

186 Future Improvement Priorities for Private Sector Housing  
The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods submitted a report outlining 
the proposed future priorities for action to improve private sector housing in 
Leeds, including the basis upon which future investment bids and proposals 
would be made. 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That the following proposals to be adopted as future private sector 

priorities for action for private sector housing in Leeds. 
 

(i) Direct investment towards excess cold / fuel poverty  and falls 
hazards  

  
(ii) To progress strong partnership collaborative work with NHS 

Leeds, the Leeds City Region Partnership, and Government in 
support of the Health and Housing Agenda. 

 
(iii) Exploring new and innovative ways of securing funding to 

support future investment plans. 
 

(iv) Jointly undertake a feasibility exercise to assess the potential of 
introducing private finance through the use of Social Impact 
Bonds (SIB) with CLG. 

Page 89



 

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 10th March, 2010 

 

 
(b) That a further report be brought to the Board providing further detail on 

potential funding options. 
 

187 Home Energy Conservation Act (HECA) (1995) - 13th Progress Report  
The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods submitted a report 
providing an update on the progress which has been made in relation to the 
overall energy efficiency levels of the Leeds housing stock during the period 
1st April 2008 to 31st March 2009. 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That content of the 13th HECA Progress Report be approved and that it 

be noted that the report will be released to Government Office for 
Yorkshire and the Humber, upon request. 

 
(b) That an annual report, on the same basis as this report, continues to 

be brought to this Board.   
 

188 Round 6 Housing PFI Project: Lifetime Neighbourhoods for Leeds  
The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods and the Director of Adult 
Social Services submitted a joint report setting out a proposal for 
improvements to older people’s housing as a result of the Council’s 
successful Expression of Interest for Round 6 of the national Housing PFI 
programme. 
 
Following consideration of Appendix 1 to the report, designated as exempt 
under Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3) and appendix 2 to the 
report designated as exempt under Access to Information Procedure Rule 
10.4 (3) and (6), which were considered in private at the conclusion of the 
meeting it was 
 
RESOLVED –   
(a) That approval be given to the scope of the project as  follows: 

• 700 new build accommodation of extra care or lifetime homes 
aimed primarily at older people, 300 units of extra care; 400 
lifetime homes.  

• mostly 2 bedroom units (flats and houses) with a small number of 
3 bed houses (2 or 3 per site) where site size allows; 

• a 25 year long HRA Scheme, with a  five year construction period; 

• Lifetime Homes standard for all properties. Code for Sustainable 
Homes Level 4/BREEAM Very Good as a minimum; 

• design, build and facilities management including repairs, lifecycle 
improvements, housing management,  communal service 
management (for extra care), and leasehold management (if 
applicable); and 

• 10 sites in 10 locations. 
 
(b) That the sites listed in the table of exempt Appendix 2a to the report be 

included in the project. 
 

Page 90



 

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 10th March, 2010 

 

(c) That approval be given to an anticipated City Council financial 
contribution as detailed within section 2  (iii) of exempt Appendix 1 to 
the report 

 
(d) That the Outline Business Case be completed and submitted, following 

approval by the Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods under 
delegated authority, on the basis of the details set out above. 

 
(e) That approval be given for a period of statutory consultation to 

commence with immediate effect to be undertaken as set out in 
recommendation (i) of exempt Appendix 2a to the report. 

 
(f) That, having regard to the scope and context of this project and 

reasons set out in the report, support be given to the principle of 
replacing sheltered housing as set out in recommendation (ii) of 
exempt Appendix 2A to the report and that the Chief Housing Officer 
be authorised to take the final decision on whether the sheltered 
housing should be replaced as proposed following any relevant formal 
consultation.  Further, that any consequential decisions about 
suspension of lettings, re-housing and demolition should also be taken 
by the Chief Housing Officer at the appropriate time under delegated 
authority. 

 
(g) That a progress report be brought to this Board in June 2010.  
 
(h) That the project be allocated to the Housing PFI Project Board for 

project governance proposals  
 
ADULT HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE 
 

189 Holt Park Wellbeing Centre - Affordability Position  
The Director of Adult Social Services and Director of City Development 
submitted a joint report on the revised affordability position for the Holt Park 
Wellbeing Centre project. 
 
Following consideration of Appendix 1 to the report, designated as exempt 
under Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3), which was considered in 
private at the conclusion of the meeting it was 
 
RESOLVED –   
(a) That approval be given to the revised estimated affordability 

implications and sensitivity analysis over the life of the proposed PFI 
Contract for the Holt Park Wellbeing centre, summarised in table 1 of 
the exempt appendix to the report 

 
(b) That the detailed information contained in the exempt appendix with 

regard to recalculation of PFI credit and reassessment of the 
affordability position be noted and that the revised affordability 
position, as contained in paragraph 3.6 of the appendix, be approved. 

                               

Page 91



 

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 10th March, 2010 

 

(c) That officers be authorised to issue the City Council’s affordability 
thresholds relating to the PFI project to the LEP and to Environments 
for Learning. 

 
CHILDREN'S SERVICES 
 

190 The Ofsted and Care Quality Commission Inspection of Safeguarding 
and Looked After Children's Services in Leeds  
The Interim Director of Children’s Services submitted a report providing 
details of the outcomes from the recent announced Ofsted inspection of 
safeguarding and looked after children’s services in Leeds. 
 
RESOLVED – That the findings of the announced inspection of safeguarding 
and looked after children’s services and how these fit into the wider 
improvement work currently taking place be noted. 
 

191 Scrutiny Board (Children's Services) Inquiry into Safeguarding - Interim 
Report: Director of Children's Services Response  
The Interim Director of Children’s Services submitted a report presenting a 
response to the Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services) interim report regarding 
the Safeguarding of Children. The Chair of the Scrutiny Board (Children’s 
Services) attended the meeting and presented the interim report of the Board.   
 
RESOLVED – That the recommendation of the Children’s Services Scrutiny 
Board Inquiry into Safeguarding-Interim Report be noted and that the 
response set out by the Interim Director of Children’s Services in Paragraphs 
3.2 to 3.7 of the submitted report be approved as an appropriate response to 
the recommendation. 
 

192 Outcome of Consultation on the Expansion of Primary Provision for 
September 2010  
Further to minute 103 of the meeting held on 14th October 2009 the Chief 
Executive of Education Leeds submitted a report detailing the outcomes 
arising from the statutory public consultation process undertaken with respect 
to the prescribed alterations to: 

• permanently expand the 17 primary schools identified in paragraph 2.3 
of the report 

• add community specialist provision for up to 14 pupils with complex 
medical physical needs at New Bewerley Primary School  

• add community specialist provision for up to 14 pupils with complex 
medical physical needs at Whitkirk Primary School. 

 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That the outcome of statutory public consultation on the prescribed 

alterations be noted  
 
(b) That approval be given for the publication of a statutory notice in 

respect of the proposals 
 

Page 92



 

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 10th March, 2010 

 

(c) That it be noted that a report detailing the response to the statutory 
notice will be brought to this Board for determination. 

 
193 Outcome of Consultations on the Expansion of Primary Provision at 

Gildersome Primary School in 2011 and at Richmond Hill Primary 
School in 2012  
Further to minutes 104 of the meeting held on 14th October 2009 and 120 of 
the meeting held on 4th November 2009 the Chief Executive of Education 
Leeds submitted a report detailing the outcomes from the statutory public 
consultation exercise undertaken with respect to Richmond Hill Primary 
School and Gildersome Primary School. 
 
RESOLVED –   
(a) That the outcome of statutory public consultation on the prescribed 

alterations to permanently expand Gildersome and Richmond Hill 
Primary Schools be noted. 

 
(b) That approval be given for the publication of a statutory notice 

proposing: 
                            

(i) the expansion of Gildersome Primary School to a new capacity of 
420 pupils from September 2011, with an admission limit of 60 
pupils 

 
(ii) the expansion of Richmond Hill Primary School to a new capacity 

of 630 pupils from September 2012, with an admission limit of 90 
pupils. 

 
(c) That it be noted that a report detailing the response to the statutory 

notice will be brought back to this Board in the Summer of 2010 for a 
final decision.      

                            
ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES 
 

194 Waste Solution for Leeds - Residual Waste Treatment PFI Project - 
Results of Detailed Solutions Stage  
The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods submitted a report 
presenting the outcomes arising from the evaluation of bids at the Detailed 
Solutions stage of the procurement process. The report also provided an 
update on the progress of the Residual Waste Treatment PFI Project since 
the report which was considered by the Board in November 2008 (minute 
136). 
 
Following consideration of Appendices B to the report and C which was 
circulated at the meeting, designated as exempt under Access to Information 
Procedure Rule 10.4(3), which were considered in private at the conclusion to 
the meeting it was 
 
 
 

Page 93



 

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 10th March, 2010 

 

RESOLVED –  
(a) That approval be given to the exclusion of the residual waste transfer 

station from the scope of the Residual Waste Treatment PFI project 
 
(b) That approval be given to the proposal not to develop a dedicated 

residual waste transfer station, with the result that all residual waste for 
treatment under the PFI contract will be delivered directly to the main 
residual waste treatment facility once the operational phase of the PFI 
contract commences 

 
(c) That the Board notes the continued requirement for the provision at 

Evanston Avenue of a household waste sorting site (HWSS) and the 
existing level of waste transfer capacity for a range of materials, and 
the intention to bring a further report to this Board on the proposed city-
wide HWSS strategy, which will expand on the strategy for 
redevelopment of the Evanston Avenue site 

 
(d) That the programme going forward to complete the Residual Waste 

procurement and to award the contract be noted 
 
(e) That the communications strategy going forward be noted 
 
(f) That the Board notes the affordability issues detailed in the exempt 

section of the submitted report and approves that the Price Ceiling will 
be calculated based upon the methodology set out in Appendix B 
paragraphs 1.6 and 1. 7 until the selection of Preferred Bidder. 

 
(Under the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 16.5 Councillor Wakefield 
required it to be recorded that he abstained from voting on this matter).  
 
 
 
DATE OF PUBLICATION:             16th February 2010 
LAST DATE FOR CALL IN:           23rd February 2010 
 
(Scrutiny Support will notify Directors of any items Called In by 12.00 noon on 
Wednesday 24th February 2010)   
 
 
 

Page 94


	Agenda
	6 Minutes - 4th February 2010
	7 Comprehensive Area Assessment 2009 - Area Assessment Report
	Comprehensive Area Assessment 2009 - Area Assessment Report - Appendix 1

	8 Joint Service Centre Kirkstall
	Joint Service Centre Kirkstall - Appendix 1

	9 Current Work Programme
	Current Work Programme - Appendix 1
	Current Work Programme - Appendix 2
	Current Work Programme - Appendix 3


